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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Simplicity of form and material combine to give San Gabriel 
Arcangel Mission its charm* Architecturally, the mission is unlike 
any of its sister churches: the side wall is the real facade; 
the Moorish appearance of its capped buttresses and long narrow 
^jjidows, found in no other mission*

According to "the California Mission", published by Lane 
Publishing Company, the church has often been described as 
"fortress style". It has many elements that can be traced directly 
to Spain, and has been compared with the Cathedral of Cordova*

c>
During the source of its existence it has experienced several 

changes in design and construction, the last major change 
occuring in 1828, when the famous bell tower thown today was erected 
as a replacement for the church tower destroyed in the 1312 earth­ 
quake* In due course of time, most of the outbuildings deteriorated 
and fell into ruin* The Church, itself, however, continufc&vto be 
used and £b remains today* The property of the Clareton Fathers 
who guard and preserve it w&ll as a parish church*

Built of adobe, concrete and brick the Church shows promise 
of existing for another 195 years.
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San Gabriel Arcangel was the fourth mission founded in 
California* It was founded on September 8, 1771 by Friars 
Pedro Cambon and Angel Somera. The Mission was moved to its 
present location in 1775 by Father Lasu£n when it was declared 
the.former mission ̂ location was subject to flood* Sitting 
«§£side three trails - (two from Mexico, and one, at a later 
period, from the east coast of the United States) it became one 
of the most prosperous missions in California. Its history, 
however, records turbulence with the Indians. The present 
church was begun in 1791, completed in 1805; damaged by earth­ 
quake in 1812; repai?ei in 1828; secularized in 1834 and its 
property was given away to settle a debt, but restored to the 
Church in 1859- It has been administered by the Church and 
since 1908 has been operated by the Clareton Fathers.
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Description of the Lopez Adobe

As originally constructed, the Lopez Adobe was a simple 
rectangular structure of adobe bricks with a timber and tile 
roof, typical of the auxiliary buildings of the California 
Missions. Since it was part of the western portion of the 
mission quadrangle, the adobe was flanked on its north and 
south ends by similar structures which formed a continuous 
row of narrow buildings with an overhanging porch on the 
eastern side. The entire wing of the quadrangle fell into 
ruins after 1830 and reconstruction of the Lopez Adobe on 
the existing walls began in the late 1860s.

The building presently consists of a 67%' x 15' 
rectangular section of adobe bricks which form walls over 
two feet thick, and several additions on the eastern side. 
The major addition, a rectangular structure of brick,about 
ten feet wide, was added to the entire length of the building 
about 1920. When the kitchen was remodeled after World War II, 
a small lean-to was added to the northeast corner of the building 
The entire structure is now sheathed with stucco.

The pitched roof of wooden shingles over the adobe 
portion dates from the late 1860s: its downward slope con­ 
tinues over the additions. Four brick chimneys, three of which 
were built before 1900, extend above the roofline. Window 
structures on the exterior have wooden shelves above and 
wooden shutters. The window openings on the interior are 
splayed, and the floors are composed of several sizes of 
red tiles.

The Lopez Adobe is located along Santa Anita Avenue 
between a convent and a school. In the rear of the structure 
is a garden and patio with a small hexagonal fountain.
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The Lopez Adobe, originally part of the western portion 
of the San Gabriel Mission quadrangle, is a structure that is 
included (although not mentioned) in the San Gabriel Mission 
property on the National Register of Historic Places. Built 
at some time between 1790 and 1805, the structure was one 
section of a much longer row of adobe buildings, and was 
probably used for storage or as a workroom for Mission Indians 
After secularization of the California Missions in the 1830s, 
this structure fell into ruin.

In the late 1860s, Nepomuceno Juan Lopez, a blacksmith 
from Mexico, acquired the property and began converting what 
was left of the building into a residence. Lopez rebuilt much 
of the walls and put up a shingle roof to replace the original 
tile roof. Lopez' wife and daughter continued to alter the 
structure after Nepomuceno's death early in the twentieth 
century, adding several new sections on the eastern side of - 
the adobe and remodeling the interior. Located in the core 
of the developing community of San Gabriel, the adobe served 
as the residence for the Lopez family for almost a century, 
and is one of several adobe structures in the city that have 
survived the many changes in the Southern California landscape 
in the twentieth century.

The adobe was sold to the San Gabriel Mission in the 
mid-1960s and was leased to the City of San Gabriel which 
operated it as a museum. In 1978 the city terminated its 
lease and removed most, of the interior furnishings. The adobe 
is presently being occupied as a residence, and plans for its 
use as a museum operated by the San Gabriel Mission are 
currently being made.

Because of its creation as a part of the San Gabriel 
Mission complex and its role as an early residence in the 
community of San Gabriel in the nineteenth century, the Lopez 
Adobe is a significant link to two important eras in the 
development of Southern California. The adobe was included in 
the Historic American Buildings Survey in 1937.
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